



Pierre Courtioux, PhD
Deputy Research Director - Speciality: Economics

Phone : +33 (0) 1.41.16.76.24
Fax : +33 (0) 1.41.16.76.45
E-mail : pierre.courtioux@edhec.edu

Pierre Courtioux is member of the EDHEC Economics Research Centre since 2006 (Deputy Research Director since 2008). He is currently associate research fellow of the Centre d'Économie de la Sorbonne (CNRS and University Paris 1–Panthéon-Sorbonne). He is specialized in social policy evaluation. He has worked as an expert for various French institutions (*Conseil d'Analyse Économique, Observatoire National de la Pauvreté et de l'Exclusion Sociale, Conseil d'Orientation des Retraites*, French Treasury) and International institutions (CEDEFOP, European Commission, International Labour Organisation).

EDUCATION

- 2012 **H.D.R.** (Habilitation à diriger des Recherches en Sciences économiques), University Paris 1 - Panthéon-Sorbonne. Dissertation: "La gestion des risques sociaux : quelques apports des méthodes de microsimulation"
- 2001 **Ph.D.** (Doctorat en Sciences économiques), University Paris 1 - Panthéon-Sorbonne, Dissertation: "Marché du travail, politique de l'emploi et sélection : une analyse évolutionnaire des préretraites en France".
- 1996 **M. A.** (DEA d'épistémologie économique), University Paris 1 - Panthéon-Sorbonne. Dissertation: "L'utilisation de l'alternative exit/voice en économie".

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

- 2015 – 2016 **Economic Culture**, M2, Bachelor of Law and Business Management, EDHEC Business School, Lille, France.
- 2013 – 2015 **Economics of private social protection**, M2, University Paris 1, Panthéon-Sorbonne, Paris, France.
- 2010 – 2015 **Economics principles**, vocational training ("responsable mutualiste"), Centre d'éducation permanente (CEP), University Paris 1, Panthéon-Sorbonne, Paris, France.

- 2009 – 2015 **Introduction to economics** (with T.-P. Maury), EDHEC Business School, Lille, France.
- 2008 – 2013 **Labour economics** (with C. Erhel), vocational training, Ecole Nationale de la Statistique et de l'Analyse de l'Information (ENSAI), Bruz, France.
- 2008 – 2009 **Labour market public policies**, M1 and M2, University of Maine, Le Mans France.
- 2002 – 2007 **Conference in macroeconomics**, M1, Science Po (FNSP), Paris, France.
- 2002 – 2007 **Associate Teacher**, University Paris 1 - Panthéon-Sorbonne, Paris, France : European Economics (L2, Teaching assistant) and Evaluation of social and employment Policies (M2, shared with C. Erhel).
- 2000 – 2002 **Temporary Lecturer and Researcher** (ATER), University Paris 1 - Panthéon-Sorbonne, Paris, France: Microeconomics, Economic and social statistics, Introduction to economics, (L1, Teaching assistant), Labour economics (L3, Teaching assistant), Macroeconomics (M1, Teaching assistant).
- 1998 – 1999 **Associate Teacher**, Institut du Travail Social de Montrouge, Montrouge, France : Introduction to economics (L1 and L2, Teaching assistant).

PROFESSIONAL NON-TEACHING EXPERIENCE

- 2002 - 2006 **Economist, DREES** (Health Ministry and Employment Ministry), Microsimulation Unit (INES), Paris.
- 1998-1999 **Research assistant**, MATISSE (CNRS-Université Paris 1 Panthéon-Sorbonne) on a project on minimum income financed by the Commissariat Général au Plan (CGP), Paris.

RESEARCH INTERESTS

- Employment, Education and Social Policies
- Microsimulation
- Socio-economic theory

PUBLICATIONS AND RESEARCH ACTIVITY

Books and edition of journals' special issues

- 1- Van Den Heuvel N., Herremans W., Van Der Hallen P., Erhel C., Courtioux P. (eds) (2006), *Active ageing, Early retirement and employability*, Der arbeidsmarkt in Vlanderen, colofon special issue, Leuven-Brussels.

Articles in scientific journals

- 2- Audier F, Bacache M., Courtioux P., Gautié J. (2015), « Politique salariale et mode de rémunération dans la fonction publique en France depuis le début des années 2000 : mutations et enjeux », *Revue Française d'Administration Publique*, 153 (1), 213-229.
- 3- Courtioux P., Gregoir S., Houeto D. (2014), « Modelling the distribution of returns on higher education: a microsimulation approach », *Economic Modelling*, 38, 328-340.
- 4- Courtioux P. (2012), « How income contingent loans could affect the return to higher education: a microsimulation of the French case », *Education Economics*, 20 (4), 402-429.
- 5- Courtioux P., Gregoir G., Houeto D. (2011), « Enseignement supérieur et durées de subvention individuelle implicite. Une analyse par microsimulation dynamique », *Revue économique*, Vol 62, n°5, p. 835-866.
- 6- Courtioux P., Gadenne L. (2010), « Inégalités et prélèvements obligatoires en France : l'apport d'une méthode de microsimulation avec *bootstrap* », *Economie Appliquée*, tome LXIII, n°2, p.5-22.
- 7- Courtioux P. (2010), « Une contribution des diplômés du supérieur à leurs études est-elle envisageable ? », *Revue française d'économie*, volume XXIV, n°3, janvier, p. 121-165.
- 8- Courtioux P., Thévenon O. (2007), « Les politiques familiales dans l'Union Européenne et la Stratégie de Lisbonne : quelques enseignements de l'expérience française », *Horizons Stratégiques*, n° 4, avril 2007, p. 176-195.
- 9- Courtioux P. (2006), « Dynamiques institutionnelles et surdétermination de la justice locale : quelle conséquence pour l'analyse des politiques ? », *Economies et Sociétés*, série « Socio-économie du travail », AB, n° 27, 9/2006, p.1203-1228.
- 10- Courtioux P. (2005), « Prise de parole et théorie économique : la controverse Hirschman-Williamson », *Cahiers d'Économie Politique*, n° 48, p. 147-159.
- 11- Courtioux P., Erhel C. (2005), « Les politiques en faveur des seniors en Allemagne, en France, au Royaume-Uni et en Suède : quelles voies de réformes ? », *Travail et Emploi*, n° 102, p. 107-118.

Books review

- 12- Courtioux P. (2005), « Compte rendu de lecture : Bernard Gazier (2003) *Vers un nouveau plein emploi* et Günther Schmid, Bernard Gazier ed. (2002) *The dynamic of full employment* », *Économies et Sociétés*, série « Socio-Economie du Travail », AB, n° 26, 8/2005, p. 1563-1570.

Other articles

- 13- Chéron A., Courtioux P., Lignon V. (2015), « Maintenir la formation continue pour les seniors : pourquoi, comment, combien ? », *Position Paper EDHEC*, May.
- 14- Courtioux P. (2014), « Que peut-on attendre d'un prêt à remboursement contingent au revenu pour les étudiants en France », *Position Paper EDHEC*, September.

- 15- Courtioux P., Lignon V. (2014), « Avoir un diplôme pour faire une bonne carrière ou un bon mariage ? » *Position Paper EDHEC*, May.
- 16- Courtioux P. (2013), « Equité fiscal et financement de l'enseignement supérieur : le Prêt à remboursement conditionnel au revenu comme instrument fiscal », *Position Paper EDHEC*, January.
- 17- Courtioux P., Gregoir S. (2012), « Mettre en place des *Contrats de formation supérieure* pour développer une société des savoirs », *Position Paper EDHEC*, Mars.
- 18- Courtioux P. (2011), « L'origine sociale joue-t-elle sur le rendement des études supérieures ? », *Position Paper EDHEC*, November.
- 19- Courtioux P., Gregoir S. (2011), « L'investissement public dans l'enseignement supérieur remet-il en cause l'équité fiscale ? », *Position Paper EDHEC*, February.
- 20- Courtioux P., Gregoir S. (2010), « Les propositions de l'EDHEC pour réformer l'enseignement supérieur : les contrats de formation supérieure », *Position Paper EDHEC*, September.
- 21- Courtioux P. (2010), « L'effet du système socio-fiscal sur les rendements privés de l'enseignement supérieur », *Position Paper EDHEC*, January.
- 22- Courtioux P. (2009), « Peut-on financer l'éducation du supérieur de manière plus équitable ? », *Position Paper EDHEC*, January.
- 23- Courtioux P. (2007), « La TVA acquittée par les ménages : une évaluation de sa charge tout au long de la vie », *Position paper EDHEC*, October.
- 24- Courtioux P. (2007), « Les effets redistributifs de la TVA sociale », *Position paper EDHEC*, July.
- 25- Courtioux P. (2007), « L'emploi des seniors », *Regard sur l'actualité*, n° 329, La documentation française, p. 89-99.
- 26- Courtioux P., Erhel C. (2006), « The national models of seniors' employment in Europe and the TLM perspective », Van Den Heuvel N., Herremans W., Van Der Hallen P., Erhel C., Courtioux P. (eds), *Active ageing, Early retirement and employability*, der arbeidsmarkt in vlanderen, Colofon special issue, p. 17-34.
- 27- Courtioux P., Thévenon O. (2006), « Politiques familiales et objectifs européens : il faut améliorer le *benchmarking* », *Position Paper EDHEC*, November.
- 28- Bechtel J., Caussat L., Courtioux P., Laïb N., Le Minez S., Mirouse B. (2005), « La politique familiale française : coûts et bénéficiaires », in Godet M. Sullerot (dir) *La famille, une affaire publique*, rapport n°57, Conseil d'Analyse Économique, La documentation française, p. 409-437.
<http://www.cae.gouv.fr/IMG/pdf/057.pdf>

- 29- Courtioux P., Laïb N., Le Minez S., Mirouse B. (2005), « L'incidence du système de prélèvements et de transferts sociaux sur le niveau de vie des familles en 2004 : une approche par microsimulation », *Études et Résultats*, n°408, juin, 12 p.
- 30- Albouy V., Bouton F., Courtioux P., Lapinte A., Le Minez S., Pucci M. (2004), « 2000-2003 : une période de réforme su système de redistribution », *France Portrait Social 2004-2005*, INSEE, p. 79-92.
- 31- Courtioux P., Le Minez S. (2004), « Les réformes récentes des barèmes fiscaux et sociaux », *Observatoire national de la pauvreté et de l'exclusion sociale. Rapport 2003*, La documentation française, p. 611-643.
- 32- Courtioux P., Lapinte A. (2003), « Politiques socio-fiscales et ' attractivité de l'emploi ' : les effets des réformes récentes sur les bas revenus », *Dossiers solidarité et santé*, n°3, La documentation française, p. 45-66.
- 33- Albouy V., Bouton F., Courtioux P., Lapinte A., Le Minez S., Pucci M. (2003), « Les effets redistributifs et les avantages familiaux du système socio-fiscal en 2002 », *France Portrait Social 2003-2004*, INSEE, p. 85-99.

Chapters in books

- 34- Courtioux P. (2007), « Part-Time Early Retirement in France: Why did it Fail? », in Anxo D., Erhel C., Schippers J. (eds), *Labour Market Transitions and Time Adjustment over the Life Course*, Dutch University Press, p. 233-247.
- 35- Courtioux P., Davoine L., Erhel C. (2007), « Pension Reforms and Labour Market: The Policy Debate and the TLM Perspective », in Anxo D., Erhel C., Schippers J. (eds), *Labour Market Transitions and Time Adjustment over the Life Course*, Dutch University Press, p.249-262.
- 36- Courtioux P. (2007), « Les effets redistributifs du scénario EDHEC : une analyse par microsimulation », in Gérard Maarek (ed), *La « TVA emploi ». Une TVA pour créer des emplois et améliorer le pouvoir d'achat des salariés*, Rapport EDHEC, pôle de recherche en économie, p.39-49.
- 37- Courtioux P., Davoine L., Erhel C. (2006), « Réforme des retraites et marché du travail : une mission impossible ? », in Dang A.T., Outin J.-L., Zajdela H., *Travailler pour être intégré ? Mutations des relations entre emploi et protection sociale*, coll. Economie, CNRS éditions, p. 89-106.
- 38- Bouton F., Courtioux P. (2005), « Risque veuvage et protection sociale : les conséquences de l'extension des pensions de réversion », in *Économie du vieillissement, T2. Âge et protection sociale*, Marie-Ève Joël, Jérôme Wittwer (eds), L'Harmattan, p. 59-74.
- 39- Courtioux P. (2000), « Efficacité, équité et apprentissage : une analyse évolutionnaire du choix français pour les préretraites », in A. Alcouffe, B. Fourcade, J-M. Plassard, G. Tahar (eds), *Efficacité versus équité en économie sociale*, tome 2, L'Harmattan, p. 285-296.

Invited Conference (since 2010)

- 40- Table ronde « Ecole et Marché » (2013), organised by Olivier Cousin, Centre Emile Durkheim (Université Bordeaux Segalen-Science Po Bordeaux), 16 mai, Bordeaux.
- 41- Pierre Courtioux (2012), « Modelling the distribution of returns to higher education: a microsimulation approach », department of Economics and Statistics, Linnaeus University, 24 mai, Växjö (Suède).
- 42- Courtioux P. (2011), « Labour market outcomes of tertiary education: a microsimulation perspective on transitions », *Workshop: New directions in working policy. Reflections on recent European experiences and their implications for Australia*. Organized by Workplace research center (University of Sydney) and University Paris 1-Panthéon Sorbonnes, Financed by the Australian Government (Department of Education, Employment and Workplace) and the Institut Universitaire de France, 8 April 2011, Sydney (Australia).

Published working papers

- 43- Courtioux P. (2005), « Part-time early retirement in France: why did it fail? », *TLM.net Working paper*, n°2005-16, Amsterdam: SISWO/Social Policy Research.
- 44- Courtioux P., Davoine L., Erhel C. (2005), « Pension reforms and the labour market: an impossible mission? », *TLM.net Working paper*, n°2005-15, Amsterdam: SISWO/Social Policy Research.
- 45- Courtioux P. (2004), « Negative income tax and transition to work: some lessons from the French *prime pour l'emploi* », *TLM.net, Work Package 5, Active Labour Market Policies and escapes routes from Unemployment*.
- 46- Courtioux P., Erhel C. (2003), « Les politiques en faveur des seniors en Allemagne, en France, au Royaume-Uni et en Suède : quelles voies de réformes ? », *Cahiers de la MSE*,
- 47- Courtioux P. (2002), « Cessation progressive *versus* cessation complète d'activité : l'utilisation des dispositifs de préretraite progressive en France sur la période 1995-1999 », *Cahiers de la MSE*, 2002.23.
- 48- Outin. J.-L., Bouchoux J., Courtioux P., Houzel Y., Maric M. (2002), « RMI et marché du travail : les "régimes locaux d'insertion" », *Collection des Documents séminaires Céreq*, n° 167, septembre, p. 207-217.

Referee Positions for peer reviews

- Economies et Sociétés série Socio-économie du travail*
- Economie et Statistique*
- Emerging Markets Finance and Trade*
- Formation-Emploi*
- International Journal of Microsimulation*
- Recherches économiques de Louvain*
- Revue Canadienne d'Education*
- Revue d'Economie Politique*
- Revue d'Economie Régionale et Urbaine*

Seminar and workshop organization

- 2014 **International workshop on income contingent loans : Public policies for funding higher education and managing social risk** (with A. Chéron, J. Gautié, A. Gramain), EDHEC Business School and Centre d'Economie de la Sorbonne, 16 June.
- 2005-2006 **Séminaire 3S**, Drees (Health Ministry and Employment Ministry)
- 2001-2002 **Séminaire Emploi-Social** (with A.-T. Dang), MATISSE (CNRS-Université Paris 1)

Participation to research contracts (since 2011)

- 2011-2012 *Evaluation du coût pour l'Etat et des conséquences en termes de redistribution de la mise en place d'un système de prêts à remboursement contingent au revenu (PARC)*, (with S. Gregoir). Financed by French Treasury, DGTRESOR-POLSEC 2011-01 marché n°1502597158.
- 2011-2012 *Public sector pay and social dialogue during the fiscal crisis: the effects of pay reforms and procurement strategies on wages and employment inequalities*, (coordinated by Manchester University), Financed by European Commission DG EMPL.B.1, VS/2011/0141.
- 2002-2006 *TLM.net. Managing social risk through transitional labour market*, (coordinated by SISWO, Netherland), Financed by European Commission, contract n°HPSE-CT-2002-50017.

PhD Supervision

Vincent Lignon, *Transitions familiales, professionnelles et investissements éducatifs. Une analyse par microsimulation dynamique*

Defended in 2014. PhD committee : H. d'Albis, D. Blanchet, A. Chéron, B. Gazier, D. Meurs.

PhD Committee

Grégoire Cauchie (2014).

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

- Society for the Advancement of Socio-Economics (SASE)
- International Microsimulation Association (IMA)